

As Amended by Senate Committee of the Whole

Substitute for SENATE BILL No. 171

By Committee on Ethics and Elections

2-20

Proposed Amendments to Sub for SB 171 (Bond & Tax)
March 16, 2015
Prepared by: Milke Heim
Office of Revisor of Statutes

1 AN ACT concerning elections and voting; relating to certain
2 municipalities and special districts; amending K.S.A. 2-623, ~~110-120,~~
3 ~~12-138, 12-344, 12-645,~~ 13-1221, ~~119-117,~~ 19-2760, 19-3505, 19-
4 3507, 24-504, 25-204, 25-209, 25-210, 25-212, 25-610, 25-1115, 25-
5 2006, 25-2007, 25-2010, 25-2014, 25-2017, 25-2018, 25-2022, 25-
6 2023, 25-2107, 25-2109, 25-2113, 25-2115, 25-2120, 25-2502, 25-
7 2804, 25-2901, 25-3503, ~~168-438,~~ 71-1408, 71-1412, 71-1413, 71-
8 1414, 71-1419, 72-8008 and 80-2508 and K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 2-624,
9 ~~112-363, 12-1737, 19-15, 116,~~ 24-412, 24-414, 24-459, 24-506, 25-
10 205, 25-213, 25-611, 25-618, 25-1122, 25-2020, 25-2102, 25-2108a,
11 25-2110, 25-2311, 25-3801 ~~and 42-706 1111-72-643,~~ and repealing
12 the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 12-1001, 12-1002, 12-1003,
13 12-1004, 12-1005, 12-1005a, 12-1005b, 12-1005c, 12-1005d, 12-
14 1005e, 12-1005f, 12-1005g, 12-1005h, 12-1005i, 12-1005k, 12-1005l,
15 12-1006, 12-1007, 12-1008, 12-1009, 12-1010, 12-1011, 12-1012, 12-
16 1013, 12-1014, 12-1015, 12-1017, 12-1018, 12-1019, 12-1020, 12-
17 1021, 12-1022, 12-1023, 12-1024, 12-1025, 12-1027, 12-1028, 12-
18 1028a, 12-1029, 12-1030, 12-1031, 12-1032, 12-1033, 12-1034, 12-
19 1035, 12-1036, 12-1036a, 12-1036b, 12-1036c, 12-1036d, 12-1036e,
20 12-1036f, 12-1036g, 12-1036h, 12-1037, 12-1038, 19-2762 and 71-
21 1417.

Strike in lines 2, 3, 7, 9 and 11
and

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Kansas:

24 New Section 1. (a) On and after January 1, 2017, all primary
25 elections for members of the governing body and other elected officials of
26 any municipality shall be held on the first Tuesday in August of 2017 and
27 on such date thereafter of odd-numbered years, and all general elections
for members of the governing body and other elected officials of any
municipality shall be held on the Tuesday succeeding the first Monday in
November of 2017 of odd-numbered years and on such date thereafter.

(b) ~~111~~ The term of members of governing bodies and other elected
officials of any municipality that would expire at any time in 2017 shall
expire on the second Monday in January of 2018, when newly elected
members of the governing body and other newly elected officials shall
take office.

~~112~~ The term of members of governing bodies and other elected

Attachment: 6-1

Date: 2-23-15

House Elections

36

#4

Elections

1 purposes, the board may extend the term of any member for not to exceed
 2 one year from the date such member's term would otherwise expire and the
 3 board of Sublette hospital district may change prior to the election the
 4 length of term for one member to be elected at the 1997 election from four
 5 years to two years. If the members of the board are currently selected
 6 pursuant to ~~provision (3) of subsection (a)(3),~~ the method of selection may
 7 be changed to the method provided for in ~~provision (4) of subsection (a)~~
 8 ~~(4)~~ by a majority vote of the board members.

9 ~~{New Sec. 61. (a) Whenever a statute requires or otherwise provides~~
 10 ~~for an election on the issue of:~~

11 (1) ~~Levying or increasing the levy of any tax; or~~

12 (2) ~~authorizing the issuance of bonds by any municipality, the~~
 13 ~~elections shall be held at the next regularly scheduled primary or~~
 14 ~~general election.~~

15 ~~{(b) "Municipality" shall mean any city, county or school district.~~

16 Sec. 62. K.S.A. 10-120 is hereby amended to read as follows: 10-
 17 120. ~~{(a)} Whenever an election is required for the issuance of bonds for~~
 18 ~~any purpose by any municipality other than an irrigation district or~~
 19 ~~where a different procedure for giving notice of the election is~~
 20 ~~specifically provided by law, upon compliance with the legal~~
 21 ~~requirements necessary and precedent to the call for the election, the~~
 22 ~~proper municipal officers shall call an election. The election shall be~~
 23 ~~held within 45 days after compliance with the necessary requirements, or~~
 24 ~~within 90 days, should the longer period include the date of a at the next~~
 25 ~~primary or general election which permits the notice requirements of~~
 26 ~~subsection (b) to be met.~~

27 (b) ~~Notice of the election shall be published in a newspaper of~~
 28 ~~general circulation in the municipality once each week for two~~
 29 ~~consecutive weeks. The first publication shall be not less than 21 days~~
 30 ~~prior to the election. The notice shall set forth the time and place of~~
 31 ~~holding the election and the purpose for which the bonds are to be~~
 32 ~~issued and shall be signed by the county election officer. The election~~
 33 ~~shall be held at the usual place of holding elections and shall be~~
 34 ~~conducted by the officers or persons provided by law for holding~~
 35 ~~elections in the municipality.~~

36 Sec. 63. K.S.A. 12-138 is hereby amended to read as follows: 12-
 37 138. Any city election called under the provisions of this act shall be
 38 ~~called within 30 days and held within 90 days after the filing of a petition~~
 39 ~~demanding such election, or after the publication of an ordinance~~
 40 ~~authorizing a levy for which an election is called without petition. The~~
 41 ~~governing body shall pass an ordinance calling the election and fixing~~
 42 ~~the date, which at the next regular primary or general election and such~~
 43 ~~ordinance shall be published once in the official city newspaper. The~~

Strike lines 9 through 43

1 sufficiency of the number of signers of any petition filed under the
2 provisions of this act shall be determined by the county election officer.
3 Every election held under the provisions of this act shall be conducted by
4 the county election officer. The county election officer shall publish a
5 notice of such election once each week for two consecutive weeks in the
6 official city newspaper, the first publication to be not less than 21 days
7 prior to such election. The notice shall state the time of the election and
8 the proposition which shall appear on the ballot. The proposition shall
9 be: "Shall revenue ordinance No. _____, entitled (title of ordinance) take
10 effect?"

11 Sec. 64. K.S.A. 12-6a15 is hereby amended to read as follows: 12-
12 6a15. The governing body of any city proposing to issue general
13 obligation bonds of the city for payment of any portion of the costs of
14 any improvement authorized by this act may by resolution submit the
15 question of issuing such bonds at a general or special election called
16 for that purpose under the provisions of K.S.A. 10-120, and amendments
17 thereto, and if such election be called, no such bonds shall be issued ~~with~~
18 ~~and unless a majority of the electors voting on the proposition shall have~~
19 ~~given their approval to the issuance of such the bonds.~~

20 Sec. 65. K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 12-1737 is hereby amended to read as
21 follows: 12-1737. The governing body of any city may, for the purposes
22 heretofore authorized and provided:

23 (a) Receive and expend gifts;

24 (b) receive and expend grants-in-aid of state or federal funds;

25 (c) issue bonds of the city;

26 (d) ~~levy an annual tax of not more than one mill for any city of the~~
27 ~~first class and not more than two mills for any city of the second or third~~
28 ~~class, which tax levy may be made for a period not exceeding 10 years~~
29 ~~upon all taxable tangible property in such city for the purpose of~~
30 ~~creating a building fund to be used for the purposes herein provided and~~
31 ~~to pay a portion of the principal and interest on bonds issued by such~~
32 ~~city under the authority of K.S.A. 12-1774, and amendments thereto;~~

33 (e) issue no-fund warrants;

34 (f) use moneys from the general operating fund or other
35 appropriate budgeted fund when available;

36 (g) use moneys received from the sale of public buildings or
37 buildings and sites; or

38 (h) combine any two or more of such methods of financing for the
39 purposes herein authorized except that cities shall first use funds
40 received from the payment of insurance claims for damages sustained by
41 any such public building before resorting to methods of financing herein
42 authorized.

43 An election upon the issuance of bonds under the authority of this

Strike lines 1 through 43

1 act shall be required for the purpose of acquiring or constructing city
2 offices, public libraries, auditoriums, community or recreational
3 buildings.

4 When an election upon the issuance of bonds is required, the
5 question of the issuance of such bonds shall be submitted to a vote of the
6 qualified electors of the city at a regular city primary or general election
7 or at a special election called for that purpose. No such bonds shall be
8 issued unless a majority of those voting on the question vote in favor of
9 the issuance of the bonds. The bond election shall be called and held
10 and the bonds shall be issued in accordance with the provisions of the
11 general bond law. No levies shall be made for the purpose of creating a
12 building fund under the provisions of this act until a resolution
13 authorizing the making of such levies is adopted by the governing body
14 of the city. Such resolution shall state the specific purpose for which the
15 tax levy is made, the total amount proposed to be raised and the number
16 of years the tax levy shall be made. The resolution shall be published
17 once each week for two consecutive weeks in the official city paper. After
18 publication, the levies may be made unless a petition requesting an
19 election upon the question of whether to make the levies is filed in
20 accordance with this section. Such petition shall be signed by electors
21 equal in number to not less than 10% of the electors who voted at the
22 last preceding regular city election as shown by the poll books, is filed
23 with the city clerk of such city within 60 days following the last
24 publication of the resolution. If a valid petition is filed, the governing
25 body shall submit the question to the voters at an election called for that
26 purpose or at the next regular city primary or general election.

27 The levy authorized by this section shall be in addition to and not
28 limited by any other act authorizing or limiting the tax levies of the city.
29 The building fund may be used for the purposes provided by this act at
30 any time after the second levy has been made. If there are insufficient
31 moneys in the building fund for expenditures for such purposes, the
32 governing body of the city may issue bonds of the city in the manner
33 provided by the general bond law of the state and in an amount which,
34 together with the amount raised by the tax levy authorized by this act,
35 will not exceed the total amount stated in the resolution creating such
36 fund. Cities are hereby authorized to invest any portion of the special
37 building fund which is not currently needed in investments authorized
38 by K.S.A. 12-1675, and amendments thereto, in the manner prescribed
39 therein or in direct obligations of the United States government
40 maturing or redeemable at par and accrued interest within three years
41 from date of purchase, the principal and interest whereof is guaranteed
42 by the government of the United States. All interest received on any such
43 investment shall upon receipt thereof be credited to the special building

Strike lines 1 through 43

7-6

1 fund.

2 No-fund warrants issued under the authority of this act shall be
3 issued in the manner and form and bear interest and be redeemed as
4 prescribed by K.S.A. 79-2940, and amendments thereto, except that they
5 may be issued without the approval of the state board of tax appeals and
6 without the notation required by K.S.A. 79-2940, and amendments
7 thereto. The governing body of the city issuing such warrants shall levy
8 a tax for the first tax levying period after such warrants are issued,
9 sufficient to pay such warrants and the interest thereon. All such tax
10 levies shall be in addition to all other levies authorized or limited by law,
11 and none of the tax limitations provided by article 19 of chapter 79 of
12 the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, shall apply to
13 such levies.

14 Sec. 66. K.S.A. 19-117 is hereby amended to read as follows: 19-
15 117. (a) Where the board of county commissioners of any county by
16 resolution proposes to levy for revenue purposes any tax, excise, fee,
17 charge or other exaction other than permit fees or license fees for
18 regulatory purposes, a procedure for the levy of which is not otherwise
19 prescribed by enactment of the legislature, such resolution shall require
20 a two-thirds ^(2/3) vote of the members of the board and shall be
21 published once each week for two ⁽²⁾ consecutive weeks in the official
22 county newspaper.

23 No such resolution shall take effect until ~~sixty (60)~~ 60 days after its
24 final publication, and if within ~~sixty (60)~~ 60 days of its final publication
25 a petition signed by not less than ~~five percent (5%)~~ 5% of the qualified
26 electors of the county shall be filed with the county election officer
27 demanding that such resolution be submitted to a vote of the electors, it
28 shall not take effect until submitted to a referendum and approved by a
29 majority of the electors voting thereon. The board of county
30 commissioners of any county may submit any resolution providing for
31 such levy to a referendum without petition. Resolutions authorizing such
32 levies submitted to referendum without petition may be passed by a
33 majority vote of the board of county commissioners and shall be
34 published once in the official county newspaper.

35 (b) Any county election called under the provisions of this act shall
36 be called within ~~thirty (30) days and held within ninety (90) days at the~~
37 next primary or general election after the filing of a petition demanding
38 such election. The board of county commissioners shall pass a
39 resolution calling the election and fixing the date, which resolution shall
40 be published once in the official county newspaper. The sufficiency of
41 the number of signers of any petition filed under this act shall be
42 determined by the county election officer. Every election held under this
43 act shall be conducted by the county election officer. The county election

Strike lines 1 through 43

1 officer shall publish a notice of such election once each week for three
2 (3) consecutive weeks in the official county newspaper, the first
3 publication to be not less than twenty-one (21) 21 days prior to such
4 election. ~~Set~~ The notice shall state the time of the election and the
5 proposition which shall appear on the ballot. The proposition shall be:
6 "Shall revenue resolution No. _____ entitled (title of resolution) take
7 effect?"

8 (c) The board of county commissioners shall be required to submit
9 to a referendum the question of levying any tax or other revenue
10 measure, authorized by the provisions of this act or other enactment
11 referring to this act, upon the receipt of a petition signed by not less than
12 ~~five percent (5%)~~ 5% of the qualified electors of such county, or upon
13 receiving resolutions requesting such an election passed by the
14 governing body of each of one or more cities within such county which
15 contains a population of not less than ~~twenty-five percent (25%)~~ 25% of
16 the entire population of the county. If a majority of the electors voting
17 thereon at such election shall approve the proposed tax or other revenue
18 measure, the board of county commissioners of such county shall then
19 provide by resolution for the levy of such tax or other revenue measure.
20 An election held under the provisions of this section shall be scheduled
21 and conducted in the same manner as if a resolution was being
22 submitted to the electors, except that the proposition shall state the
23 nature of the tax or revenue measure, the proposed rate and the date it
24 would take effect.

25 (d) Any county tax or other revenue measure adopted under the
26 provisions of this section shall continue in effect until amended or
27 repealed by a resolution of the board of county commissioners which
28 has also been adopted under the provisions of this section.

29 Sec. 67. K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 19-15,116 is hereby amended to read as
30 follows: 19-15,116. The board of county commissioners of any county
31 may for the purposes ~~herebefore~~ authorized and provided:

32 (a) Receive and expend gifts;

33 (b) receive and expend grants-in-aid of state or federal funds;

34 (c) issue general obligation bonds of the county. If it is determined
35 that it is necessary to issue more than \$300,000 in general obligation
36 bonds for the purposes ~~herebefore~~ authorized, such bonds shall not be
37 issued until the question of their issuance has been submitted to a vote
38 of the qualified electors of the county and has been approved by a
39 majority of those voting thereon at a primary or general election ~~or at a~~
40 ~~special election~~ ~~entitled for that purpose~~. Such election shall be called and
41 held and bonds issued in the manner provided by the general bond law;
42 (d) make an annual tax levy of not to exceed one mill for a period
43 of not to exceed 10 years upon all taxable tangible property in the county

Strike lines 1 through 43

1 for the purpose of creating a building fund to be used for the purposes
2 herein provided and to pay a portion of the principal and interest on
3 bonds issued under the authority of K.S.A. 12-1774, and amendments
4 thereto, by cities located in the county, except that no such levies shall be
5 made until a resolution authorizing the same shall be adopted by the
6 board of county commissioners stating the specific purpose for which
7 such fund is created, the total amount proposed to be raised, the number
8 of years such tax levy shall be made and shall be published once each
9 week for three consecutive weeks in the official county newspaper.
10 Whereupon such levies may be made unless a petition requesting an
11 election upon the proposition, signed by electors equal in number to not
12 less than 10% of the electors of the county who voted for the secretary of
13 state at the last preceding general election, is filed with the county clerk
14 within 30 days following the last publication of such resolution. In the
15 event such petition is filed, the board of county commissioners shall
16 submit the question to the voters at ~~at the next primary or general~~
17 ~~election called for that purpose and held within 90 days after the last~~
18 ~~publication of the resolution or at the next general election if held within~~
19 ~~that time and.~~ No such levies shall be made unless such the proposition
20 shall receive the approval of a majority of the votes cast thereon. Such
21 election shall be called and held in the manner provided in the general
22 bond law. Such building fund may be used for the purposes stated in the
23 resolution establishing the same at any time after the making of the
24 second levy and if there are insufficient moneys in the building fund for
25 such purpose the board of county commissioners may, in the manner
26 provided by the general bond law of the state issue general obligation
27 bonds of the county in an amount which together with the amount raised
28 by the tax levies will not exceed the total amount stated in the resolution
29 creating such fund. All levies authorized under the provisions of this
30 section shall be in addition to and not limited by any other act
31 authorizing or limiting the tax levies of such counties. Counties are
32 hereby authorized to invest any portion of the special building fund
33 which is not currently needed in investments authorized by K.S.A. 12-
34 1675, and amendments thereto, in the manner prescribed therein or in
35 direct obligations of the United States government maturing or
36 redeemable at par and accrued interest within three years from date of
37 purchase, the principal and interest whereof is guaranteed by the
38 government of the United States. All interest received on any such
39 investment shall upon receipt thereof be credited to the special building
40 fund, except that the board of county commissioners of any county
41 which has heretofore established a building fund under the provisions of
42 this act may, if it shall find that the amount of the fund as originally
43 established is insufficient for such purposes, by resolution redetermine

Strike lines 1 through 43

1 and increase the amount necessary to be raised for the purpose for
2 which such fund was originally created and may make or continue to
3 make an annual tax levy of not to exceed one mill upon all of the taxable
4 tangible property of the county for the purpose of providing the
5 additional funds contemplated by the supplemental resolution and to pay
6 a portion of the principal and interest on bonds issued under the
7 authority of K.S.A. 12-1774, and amendments thereto, by cities located
8 in the county. Such supplemental resolution shall be published and shall
9 be subject to petition for election and become effective in like manner as
10 that provided for the original resolution;

11 (e) issue no-fund warrants in the manner and form and bearing
12 interest and redeemable as prescribed by K.S.A. 79-2940, and
13 amendments thereto, except that they may be issued without the
14 approval of the state board of tax appeals, and without the notation
15 required by such section. The board of county commissioners shall make
16 a tax levy at the first tax levying period after such warrants are issued,
17 sufficient to pay such warrants and the interest thereon. All such levies
18 shall be in addition to all other levies authorized or limited by law and
19 the tax limitations provided by article 19 of chapter 79 of the Kansas
20 Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto, shall not apply to such
21 levies;

22 (f) use moneys from the general operating fund or other
23 appropriated budgeted fund when such is available;

24 (g) use moneys received from the sale of public buildings or
25 buildings and sites without regard to limitations prescribed by the budget
26 law;

27 (h) or may combine any two or more of such methods of financing
28 for the purposes herein authorized, except that counties shall first use
29 funds received from the payment of insurance claims for damages
30 sustained by any such public building before resorting to methods of
31 financing herein authorized;

32 (i) authorize the county engineer to supervise the work necessary
33 for the purposes herein provided, including the right of such county
34 engineer to have such work done by force account as well as by contract.

35 Sec. 68. K.S.A. 68-438 is hereby amended to read as follows: 68-
36 438. The governing body of any city may submit the question of issuing
37 general obligation bonds of the city as authorized by K.S.A. 68-437, and
38 amendments thereto, to the electors at a primary or general election
39 called by the governing body at any time and held thereon. The governing
40 body shall submit such question upon submission of a petition signed by
41 not less than 10% of the qualified electors of the city.

42 Sec. 69. K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 72-6433 is hereby amended to read as
43 follows: 72-6433. (a) As used in this section:

Strike lines 1 through 43

1 (1) "State prescribed percentage" means 33% of state financial aid
2 of the district in the current school year.

3 (2) "Authorized to adopt a local option budget" means that a
4 district has adopted a resolution pursuant to subsection (c), (d) or (e).

5 (3) "State financial aid" shall have the meaning provided in K.S.A.
6 72-6410, and amendments thereto, except that the term shall not include
7 virtual school state aid, as described in K.S.A. 72-3715, and amendments
8 thereto.

9 (b) In each school year, the board of any district may adopt a local
10 option budget which does not exceed the state prescribed percentage.

11 (c) Subject to the limitation of subsection (b), in each school year,
12 the board of any district may adopt, by resolution, a local option budget
13 in an amount not to exceed.

14 (1) (A) The amount which the board was authorized to adopt in
15 accordance with the provisions of this section in effect prior to its
16 amendment by this act; plus

17 (B) the amount which the board was authorized to adopt pursuant
18 to any resolution currently in effect; plus

19 (C) the amount which the board was authorized to adopt pursuant
20 to K.S.A. 72-6444, and amendments thereto, if applicable to the district;
21 or

22 (2) the state-wide average for the preceding school year as
23 determined by the state board pursuant to subsection (k).

24 Except as provided by subsection (e), the adoption of a resolution
25 pursuant to this subsection shall require a majority vote of the members
26 of the board. Such resolution shall be effective upon adoption and shall
27 require no other procedure, authorization or approval.

28 (d) Except as provided by subsection (e), if the board of a district
29 desires to increase its local option budget authority above the amount
30 authorized under subsection (c) or if the board was not authorized to
31 adopt a local option budget in 2006-2007, the board may adopt, by
32 resolution, such budget in an amount not to exceed the state prescribed
33 percentage. The adoption of a resolution pursuant to this subsection
34 shall require a majority vote of the members of the board. The resolution
35 shall be published at least once in a newspaper having general
36 circulation in the district. The resolution shall be published in
37 substantial compliance with the following form:

38 Unified School District No. _____,

39 _____ County, Kansas.

40 RESOLUTION

41 Be It Resolved that:

42 The board of education of the above-named school district shall be
43 authorized to adopt a local option budget in each school year in an

Strike lines 1 through 43

1 amount not to exceed ____% of the amount of state financial aid. The
2 local option budget authorized by this resolution may be adopted, unless
3 a petition in opposition to the same, signed by not less than 5% of the
4 qualified electors of the school district, is filed with the county election
5 officer of the home county of the school district within 30 days after
6 publication of this resolution. If a petition is filed, the county election
7 officer shall submit the question of whether adoption of the local option
8 budget shall be authorized to the electors of the school district at an
9 election called for the purpose or at the next general election, as is
10 specified by the board of education of the school district.

11 CERTIFICATE

12 This is to certify that the above resolution was duly adopted by the
13 board of education of unified School District No. ____,
14 County, Kansas, on the ____ day of ____, ____.

15
16 Clerk of the board of education.

17 All of the blanks in the resolution shall be filled as is appropriate. If a
18 sufficient petition is not filed, the board may adopt a local option budget.
19 If a sufficient petition is filed, the board may notify the county election
20 officer of the date of an election to be held to submit the question of
21 whether adoption of a local option budget shall be authorized. Any such
22 election shall be noticed, called and held in the manner provided by
23 K.S.A. 10-120, and amendments thereto. If the board fails to notify the
24 county election officer within 30 days after a sufficient petition is filed,
25 the resolution shall be deemed abandoned and no like resolution shall
26 be adopted by the board within the nine months following publication of
27 the resolution.

28 (e) (1) Except as provided by paragraphs (2) and (3), any resolution
29 authorizing the adoption of a local option budget in excess of 30% of the
30 state financial aid of the district in the current school year shall not
31 become effective unless such resolution has been submitted to and
32 approved by a majority of the qualified electors of the school district
33 voting at a primary or general election called and held therein. The
34 election shall be called and held in the manner provided by K.S.A. 10-
35 120, and amendments thereto, except that such election shall be a mail
36 ballot election conducted in accordance with K.S.A. 25-431 et seq., and
37 amendments thereto. Any such election shall be held on or before August 1
38 of the initial school year for which such resolution was adopted.

39 (2) For school year 2014-2015, any board of education of a school
40 district which has adopted a local option budget in excess of 30% of state
41 financial aid in the current school year on or before June 30, 2014, may
42 adopt a second resolution in an amount not to exceed 2% of state
43 financial aid, provided that the aggregate local option budget authority

Strike lines 1 through 43

1 *for the district does not exceed 33% of state financial aid in the current*
2 *school year. The adoption of a second resolution pursuant to this*
3 *paragraph shall require a majority vote of the members of the board and*
4 *shall specifically state in such resolution that it shall expire on June 30,*
5 *2015. Such resolution shall be effective upon adoption and shall require*
6 *no other procedure, authorization or approval.*

7 (3) *The board of unified school district no. 207, as described in*
8 *K.S.A. 72-5333b, and amendments thereto, may adopt a local option*
9 *budget in excess of 30% of state financial aid of the district in the*
10 *current school year in accordance with subsection (d).*

11 (f) *Unless specifically stated otherwise in the resolution, the*
12 *authority to adopt a local option budget shall be continuous and*
13 *permanent. The board of any district which is authorized to adopt a local*
14 *option budget may choose not to adopt such a budget or may adopt a*
15 *budget in an amount less than the amount authorized. If the board of*
16 *any district whose authority to adopt a local option budget is not*
17 *continuous and permanent refrains from adopting a local option budget,*
18 *the authority of such district to adopt a local option budget shall not be*
19 *extended by such refrainment beyond the period specified in the*
20 *resolution authorizing adoption of such budget.*

21 (g) *The board of any district may initiate procedures to renew or*
22 *increase the authority to adopt a local option budget at any time during*
23 *a school year after the tax levied pursuant to K.S.A. 72-6435, and*
24 *amendments thereto, is certified to the county clerk under any existing*
25 *authorization.*

26 (h) *The board of any district that is authorized to adopt a local*
27 *option budget prior to the effective date of this act under a resolution*
28 *which authorized the adoption of such budget in accordance with the*
29 *provisions of this section in effect prior to its amendment by this act may*
30 *continue to operate under such resolution for the period of time*
31 *specified in the resolution or may abandon the resolution and operate*
32 *under the provisions of this section as amended by this act. Any such*
33 *district shall operate under the provisions of this section as amended by*
34 *this act after the period of time specified in the resolution has expired.*

35 (i) *Any resolution adopted pursuant to this section may revoke or*
36 *repeal any resolution previously adopted by the board. If the resolution*
37 *does not revoke or repeal previously adopted resolutions, all resolutions*
38 *which are in effect shall expire on the same date. The maximum amount*
39 *of the local option budget of a school district under all resolutions in*
40 *effect shall not exceed the state prescribed percentage in any school*
41 *year.*

42 (j) (1) *There is hereby established in every district that adopts a*
43 *local option budget a fund which shall be called the supplemental*

Strike lines 1 through 43

1 general fund. The fund shall consist of all amounts deposited therein or
2 credited thereto according to law.

3 (2) Subject to the limitation imposed under paragraph (3) and
4 subsection (e) of K.S.A. 72-6434(e), and amendments thereto, amounts
5 in the supplemental general fund may be expended for any purpose for
6 which expenditures from the general fund are authorized or may be
7 transferred to any program weighted fund or categorical fund of the
8 district. Amounts in the supplemental general fund attributable to any
9 percentage over 25% of state financial aid determined for the current
10 school year may be transferred to the capital improvements fund of the
11 district and the capital outlay fund of the district if such transfers are
12 specified in the resolution authorizing the adoption of a local option
13 budget in excess of 25%.

14 (3) Amounts in the supplemental general fund may not be expended
15 for the purpose of making payments under any lease-purchase
16 agreement involving the acquisition of land or buildings which is
17 entered into pursuant to the provisions of K.S.A. 72-8225, and
18 amendments thereto.

19 (4) (A) Except as provided in paragraph (B), any unexpended
20 budget remaining in the supplemental general fund of a district at the
21 conclusion of any school year in which a local option budget is adopted
22 shall be maintained in such fund.

23 (B) If the district received supplemental general state aid in the
24 school year, the state board shall determine the ratio of the amount of
25 supplemental general state aid received to the amount of the local option
26 budget of the district for the school year and multiply the total amount of
27 the unexpended budget remaining by such ratio. An amount equal to the
28 amount of the product shall be transferred to the general fund of the
29 district or remitted to the state treasurer. Upon receipt of any such
30 remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the same in the state treasury
31 to the credit of the state school district finance fund.

32 (k) Each year the state board of education shall determine the
33 statewide average percentage of local option budgets legally adopted by
34 school districts for the preceding school year.

35 (l) The provisions of this section shall be subject to the provisions of
36 K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 72-6433d, and amendments thereto.

37 New Sec. 70. (a) The purpose of this section is to provide an orderly
38 and prompt means of filling vacancies in the governing body of a
39 municipality. Prolonged vacancies in the governing body of a
40 municipality deprive citizens of their right to representation and act as
41 impediments to the orderly function of government of municipalities.

42 (b) As used in this section, the following terms are defined as
43 follows:

Strike lines 1 through 36

And by renumbering sections accordingly

(1) "Governing body" shall include the mayor and members of the council, the mayor and commissioners or the chairperson and members of the board of supervisors, depending on the form of government of the city or the consolidated city and county.

(2) "Municipality" means any city or any consolidated city and county.

(c) Except as provided in subsection (d), the governing body of any municipality where a vacancy exists shall appoint, by a majority vote of the remaining members, a person to fill the vacancy within 60 days of the vacancy. If the appointment is not made within the 60-day time frame, the governing body shall pass a resolution calling for a special election to fill such vacancy to be held within 45 days of the passage of such resolution. Candidates for the vacant office shall file for such office as provided in K.S.A. 25-2110a, and amendments thereto. The special election shall be conducted by the county election officer. The candidate receiving the highest number of votes for the vacant position shall assume such office upon certification of the election results.

(d) The provisions of subsection (c) shall not apply to any municipality which has a procedure for filling vacancies in its governing body and which has filled such vacancies within 60 days of the vacancy.

Sec. 71. K.S.A. 12-344 is hereby amended to read as follows: 12-344. (a) Any plan submitted by the commission shall provide for the exercise of powers of local legislation and administration not inconsistent with the constitution or other laws of this state.

(b) If the commission submits a plan providing for the consolidation of certain city and county offices, functions, services and operations, the plan shall:

(1) Include a description of the form, structure, functions, powers and officers and the duties of such officers recommended in the plan;

(2) provide for the method of amendment of the plan;

(3) authorize the appointment of, or elimination of elective officials and officers;

(4) specify the effective date of the consolidation; and

(5) include other provisions determined necessary by the commission.

(c) If the plan provides for the consolidation of the city and county, in addition to the requirements of subsection (b), the plan shall:

(1) Fix the boundaries of the governing body's election districts, provide a method for changing the boundaries from time-to-time, any at-large positions on the governing body, fix the number, term and initial compensation of the governing body of the consolidated city-county and the method of election;

(2) determine whether elections of the governing body of the

1 consolidated city-county shall be partisan or nonpartisan elections and
2 the time at which such elections shall be held;:

3 (3) determine the distribution of legislative and administrative
4 duties of the consolidated city-county officials, provide for consolidation
5 or expansion of services as necessary, authorize the appointment of a
6 consolidated city-county administrator or a city-county manager, if
7 deemed advisable, and prescribe the general structure of the
8 consolidated city-county government;:

9 (4) provide for the official name of the consolidated city-county;:
10 and

11 (5) provide for the transfer or other disposition of property and
12 other rights, claims and assets of the county and city.

13 (d) Vacancies in the governing body shall be filled as provided in
14 section 1, and amendments thereto.

15 Sec. 72. K.S.A. 2014 Supp. 12-363 is hereby amended to read as
16 follows: 12-363. (a) Any plan submitted by the commission shall provide
17 for the exercise of powers of local legislation and administration not
18 inconsistent with the constitution or other laws of this state.

19 (b) If the commission submits a plan providing for the unification
20 of certain city and county offices, functions, services and operations, the
21 plan shall:

22 (1) Include a description of the form, structure, functions, powers
23 and officers and the duties of such officers recommended in the plan;:

24 (2) provide for the method of amendment of the plan;:

25 (3) specify the effective date of the unification; and

26 (4) include other provisions determined necessary by the
27 commission.

28 (c) If the plan provides for the unification of the city and county, in
29 addition to the requirements of subsection (b) the plan shall:

30 (1) Provide that the members of the governing body be elected from
31 districts or on an at-large basis and fix the number, term and initial
32 compensation of the governing body of the unified city-county and the
33 method of election;:

34 (2) determine whether elections of the governing body of the
35 unified city-county shall be partisan or nonpartisan elections and the
36 time at which such elections shall be held;:

37 (3) determine the distribution of legislative and administrative
38 duties of the unified city-county officials, provide for unification or
39 expansion of services as necessary, authorize the appointment of a city-
40 county administrator or manager, if deemed advisable, and prescribe the
41 general structure of the unified city-county government;:

42 (4) provide for the official name of the unified city-county;:

43 (5) provide for the transfer or other disposition of property and

7-1-9

1 *other rights, claims and assets of the county and city; and*

2 *(6) fix the rate of the retailers' sales tax, if any.*

3 *(d) Vacancies in the governing body shall be filled as provided in*
4 *section 1, and amendments thereto.*

5 ~~Sec. 64-173, K.S.A. 2-623, 10-120, 12-138, 12-344, 12-645, 12-~~
6 ~~1001, 12-1002, 12-1003, 12-1004, 12-1005, 12-1005a, 12-1005b, 12-~~
7 ~~1005c, 12-1005d, 12-1005e, 12-1005f, 12-1005g, 12-1005h, 12-1005i, 12-~~
8 ~~1005k, 12-1005l, 12-1006, 12-1007, 12-1008, 12-1009, 12-1010, 12-1011,~~
9 ~~12-1012, 12-1013, 12-1014, 12-1015, 12-1017, 12-1018, 12-1019, 12-~~
10 ~~1020, 12-1021, 12-1022, 12-1023, 12-1024, 12-1025, 12-1027, 12-1028,~~
11 ~~12-1028a, 12-1029, 12-1030, 12-1031, 12-1032, 12-1033, 12-1034, 12-~~
12 ~~1035, 12-1036, 12-1036a, 12-1036b, 12-1036c, 12-1036d, 12-1036e, 12-~~
13 ~~1036f, 12-1036g, 12-1036h, 12-1037, 12-1038, 13-1221, 19-117, 19-~~
14 ~~2760, 19-2762, 19-3505, 19-3507, 24-504, 25-204, 25-209, 25-210, 25-~~
15 ~~212, 25-610, 25-1115, 25-2006, 25-2007, 25-2010, 25-2014, 25-2017, 25-~~
16 ~~2018, 25-2022, 25-2023, 25-2107, 25-2109, 25-2113, 25-2115, 25-2120,~~
17 ~~25-2502, 25-2804, 25-2901, 25-3503, 68-438, 71-1408, 71-1412, 71-~~
18 ~~1413, 71-1414, 71-1417, 71-1419, 72-8008 and 80-2508 and K.S.A. 2014~~
19 ~~Supp. 2-624, 12-363, 12-1737, 19-15116, 24-412, 24-414, 24-459, 24-~~
20 ~~506, 25-205, 25-213, 25-611, 25-618, 25-1122, 25-2020, 25-2102, 25-~~
21 ~~2108a, 25-2110, 25-2311, 25-3801 and 42-706 42-706 4433 are~~
22 hereby repealed.

23 ~~Sec. 62-174.~~ This act shall take effect and be in force from and after
24 its publication in the statute book.

Strike in lines 5, 13, 17, 19 and 21

and